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BY E-MAIL . 

Division of Dockets ManaaelYlerzc ..~ 
Food and Bru- Administration 
5630 Fishers Lane, 1Roonn 1061 (IIF'.4-3 0-5 ) 
Rockville, Maryland ?0852 

Re: Docket No. 2005)P-0460/CP I 
Comrnents in Opposition to Pediatric Waiver P eq uest 3ot--EZani iprii Tablets ' 

Dear Sir or Madam: 

We are sublnittinl- these coinments in opposition to the above Pediatric. Wav~,'er-
Request (the "Waiver Request") subiYlitted on November 15-1 . 2005 by Lachn-lan 
Consulting S,.-r%Jices, hic . ("Petitioner") . Petitioner seeks a deterlnFnutiori that an 
abbreviated new drug applicaiioll ( ANGE1) nnay be submitted for a change in dosage forni 
from capsules to tablets, based on the reference liste(11 drug Altace (Ra1-nipril Capsules, 

, 1 .25 mg., 2 .5 inp ., 5 1n~ . . zn(l 10 m~ .) (NDA. 19-901) . and reqttests a waiver of the 
: requirement to perforin pediatric studies as required by the Pediatric Research Equity Act 

("PR.EA"): Far the reasons detailed in the discussion that f'ollows, there is no basis to 
support the pediatric waiver and we respee-tfuEly request that the waiver be denied. 
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Discussion 

kamipt-il, the drug for which Petitioner seeks a pediatric rv aisTer, is an angiotensin ` ' 
converting enzyme ("ACE") inhibitor which is indicated for : (I) reduction in risk of 
myocardial infarction, stroke and death lrom cardiovascular causes in patients 55 years or 
older ; (2) treatment of hypertension (alone or iYl combination with thiaz.icle diuretics) ; and 
(3) treatment of heart failure post myocardial infarction . As stated in the labeling of the 
proposed reference listed drug ; Altaee, s~t'et ;y and effectiveness in pediatric patients have 
not been established . However, AGE inhibitors are rolrtifiely used %n substantial numbers 
of pediatric. cardiac patients . Indeed .. as rccogt,ized iii the Waiver .Request ., FDA has 
specifically identified Ramipril (among other ACE inhibitors) as a drug for which 
additional information may provide benefit in pediatric patients ., and requested Altace's 
sponsor King Pharmaceuticals, Inc . to perfocnl pediatric studies.] According to public 
statements by King Pharmaceuticals, Such a study has been undertaken . 

Under the Federal Food. l)rLi2, and Cosmetic Act ('T'DCA"') as amended b", the 
PREA (FDCA § 5058(a)(l )), a person rvho submits an application under section 545 of 
the Act for a ne« dosa(-,e form of a drug nzust conduct studies adequate to evaluate the 
proposed product's saiety and effectiveness and to establish appropriate dosing in all 
relevant pediatric. populations, unless FDA waives the requirement . In order to obtain a 
waiver under the statute,, a petitioner must shorN, that : necessary studies are impossible or ` 
highly impracti~~able ; there is ev~dence strongly 5l~ggesti~~g the product ~~~ouid b~ 
ineffective or unsafe in all pediatric age groups; or the product does not represent a 
meaningful therapeutic benefit over existing therapies for pediatric populations arid is not 
lil<elv to be used in a substantial number of pediatric patients . FDA has made it clear that 
the burden of establishing eligibility iox a waiver is on the requester, and that a11 such 
requests must specify the particular statutory basis for a waiver and provide supporting 
evidence that a waiver is appropriate uncl~~~ the circuffustances .` If a change from an 
approved drub proposed in an ANDA suitability petition triggers the need for pediatric 
clinical studies under PREA (as would a change dosage fornl), and I, DA does not 
waive the requirement ., the proposed product will not be eligible to be approved in an 
ANDA and the suitability petition n7uct bc de-rued. 

The Waiver Request included in the ANI» Suitability Petition fails to identify; 
much less offer any evidence to support, any basis for FDA to grant the requested waiver 

' Id. at 2. 

, . y ~~th the Pediatric See FDA, Draft Guidance For Industry, I-low to Comply j~-~ , 
Research Equity Act (Septeinber 2i)05) . 9-11 . 
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under the criteria prescribed by % PREA. Instead, the Petitioner nierekr asserts that a 
waiver ̀ 'should be granted" because FDA-fequested pediatric studies on Raimpril and 
other ACE activities have been or are being conducted b~~ other parties, and "it is not 
likely that duplication of studies . . . will _}dd aii- ythin, g, to the knowleaoe base for pediatric 
patients[ .]" FDA must and routinely has refused to grant PREA waivers, in the absence of 
evidence that the statuto,,°v criteria are satisfied . notwithstanding other parties' ongoing 
pediatric studies, and it should certainly do so again in this case .' 

Furthermore, FDA has an an1ple bLisis to conclude that none of t1lie statutory 
waiver criteria applies to the drug product at issue . Given the established use of Ramipril 
and other ACE inhibitors in pediatric patients, as u%eH as FDA's prior determination that 
additional information on IZamipril tnay produce beticfits for the pediairic population ., 
there certainly is no reason to think that either the proposed product would be unsafe or 
ineffective in all pediatric populations, or that it is not likely lo be use([ in a substantial 
number of pediatric patients . Finally, the requested change in dosage form is specifically, 
intended "to provide a more convement dosage form for those patients that find it 
difficult to svv~allo«- capsules or who pret'er a tablet dosage form." Such a change is at 
least as likely to increase convenience abr children as it is for adults . and jnay in fact be 

` especially desirable for children in cases where table t-splilting could provide desired 
flexibility in dosing . This may especially be true for Rarnipril, gii~en that children appear 
to be especially sensitive to the effects of .\C;E inhibitors and therefore may require lower 
starting doses arid more precise 1itratioil than adults A PREA waiver clearly cannot be 
granted under these circumstances. 

See, e.~ ., Letter to Lachillan Consu'ting Services froni Gary t3uehler . ?O041'-
04C)S/PDN1 (July 28, 2005) at 2 and note 1 (petition reliisvd because it "offered no 
basis, and the Agency finds none, f>r eoncludinor that am, oti'these [PREA-
specified waiver] cii-ctirnstances exist", notwithstanding argument that FDA had 
already requested pediatric studies on the reference listed drug) ; Letter to Bedford 
Laboratories from Gary Buehler, ?U04f'-0U85/PDN 1 at 2 and note I (refusing 
pediatric Nvaiver on grounds petitialn failed to assert d statUtOry basis and FDA 
found that none applied, notwithstanding arguments based on innovator's pediatric 
studies and exclusivity- status) . 

See, e.g- Li, J .S . et al . . Is the i;xtrapolated Adult Dose of Vosinapril Safe ind 
Effective in Treating Hypertznsivc Children'? (abstract available at 
http :i ihyper.ahaj ournals .ot ~4/e~ii;;~iitent/absti ac;t/44i3~'189e 




